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" The Wyoming Village Historic District spans the Wood River in the
towns of Hopkinton and Richmond (see site plan). The 59 buildings and
sites within the district are almost evenly divided between the two towns.
Because of its siting, the district has three distinct sub-areas:
"Prospect Square" -- Prospect Street, Aldrich Street and Bridge Street
in Hopkinton; the river, mill ruins, bridge and reservoir; the village
center along routes 138 and 3 in Richmond.

The Prospect Street area is residential. Most of the houses are
grouped in or around a roughly rectangular plot of land occupying an
elevated plateau overlooking the reservoir and dam. Of the eighteen
houses¢ here, thirteen are in the Greek Revival style so pervasive between
1830 and 1860. One building may be somewhat earlier in date, and one
house and one barn date from the late nineteenth century. The rest are
more recent structures.

The Niles House (#12 on the site plan) typifies the vernacular Greek
Revival dwellings in "Prospect Square." It is a 1% story house with 1
story ell. Its pitched roof is set flank to the Street. The house has
characteristic Greek Revival trim, simple but large scale. No two houses
in this area are alike, and several are rather unusual -- the Aldrich
House (#15), for example, with its Doric porch, or the A. Kenyon House
(#20) with its rusticated corner boards and door casing. Some of these
houses are almost unaltered, others have late nineteenth century additions
in the form of verandas and enlarged ells (e.g., #5, #14).

The Wood River at Wyoming has been dammed to create a large reservoir
(#29). Below the dam is the Bridge Street bridge. Water from the
reservoir has been channeled into trenches which once brought power to
mills on both sides of the river. None of the mills are intact, but a
dilapitated ruin exists on the Hopkinton side (#28). The mill seat on
the Richmond shore southeast of the bridge is now the Wyoming Fishing Area
maintained by the state. It includes a series of masonry foundations,
arches and power trenches.

Wyoming's old business district is located at the intersection of
Route 138 and Route 3 in Richmond. The principal building here is the
Dawley Tavern (#32), a much enlarged clapboard structure dating back to
the eighteenth century.  Opposite are three buildings which once contained
stopes (#44, 35, 46). The Segar Store (#46) was also the Wyoming Post
Office. This 2! story Greek Revival building is situated with its ped-
imented gable end to the street. A two story late nineteenth century porch
has been added across its front. The building stands directly on the
highway with no front yard or sidewalk space whatsoever. It is built
into a bank and the basement where Segar had his store is above grade in
front. The former Dawley-Jordan livery stable (#48) occupies the head
of the "Y" intersection of routes 138 and 3. It is a 1% and 2 story
frame building, now used as a gas station.

See continuation sheet 1

33

SNOITL1J3NYJYLSNI



INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

PERIOD (Check One or More as Appropriate)
(O Pre-Columbian! [J 16th Century 18th Century (] 20th Century
(O 15th Century (3 17th Century X3 19th Century

‘SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicable and Known) *.]_8'_]_41 1815

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

(¥ Urban Planning 5t ruble

Aboriginal (] Education (O Political 8’,%3
(O] Prehistoric [OJ Engineering [} Religion/Phi- L] Other (Specity)
(O] Historic & Industry losophy

(3 Agriculture (O Invention [ Science

(B Architecture (] Londscape [ Sculpture

O Art : Architecture [ Social/Human-

K] Commerce [ - Literature itarian

] Communications [] Military [0 Theater

[ Conservation [ Music (X Transportation

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Wyoming developed as an industrial village, a turnpike waystop, and
a commercial center. In the late eighteenth century what is now Wyoming
was the farm of Samuel Brand. Brand was not solely a farmer, however.
He dammed the river, established an iron wekks on the Hopkinton shore,
and began the settlement first known as "Brand's Iron Works." How the
name was changed to "Wyoming" is not clear, but how Brand's fledgling
village became a thriving community is well documented.

-In 1814, Nathan Lillibridge, in partnership with Exekiel, Stephen,
Samuel and Nathan Tefft, built the Brothers' Cotton Mill opposite Brand's
establishment. The following year the New London Turnpike, part of the
principal overland route from Boston to New York, was opened. It passed
directly through the village and is now Route 3. The turnpike improved
transportation to and from the Wyoming factories and thus aided their
business. More significantly, it brought stage coaches, mail riders
and individual travelers to the village and the tavern (#32) enjoyed a
lucrative trade. First operated by Francis Brown, Samuel Brand's son-
in-law, the tavern's most famous proprietor was A. J. Dawley who kept
the house for forty-five years in the mid~-nineteenth century. Owner-

ship of the livery stable (#48) was a natural outgrowth of Dawley's
enterprise.

In the late 1830's the iron works was displaced by a second cotton
mill. When the mill burned in 1844, the site was thksn over by J. T.
Sheldon, who erected a new textile mill and continued in business through
the late 1870's. His mill was probably the most successful industrial
venture at Wyoming and his prosperity, and the work available in his
mill, prompted the development of "Prospect Square."

Wyoming's first store was opened in 1837. By 1870 there were three
general stores in the village, two blacksmith shops, a hardware store,
tailor, paint shop, druggist, photographer's studio, furniture store,
and a bank. Wyoming's "downtown" was the primary commercial district
for an extensive area.

Today the mills are gone and business has almost .ceased in the village
of Wyoming. Only a gas station, an insurance office and a barroom hint
of the once extensive commercial activity. A late twentieth century
turnpike-oriented business district has grown up half a mile southeast

See continuation sheet 4
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2. Location

For the purposes. of this National Register nomination, the bounds of
the district are as follows: The district includes all property on both
sides of Prospect Street, Aldrich Street, and Bridge Street to a distance
of 200' back from these thoroughfares; all property on both sides of Route
3 from its intersection with Canob Lane west to and including the Wyoming
Bridge, and back from the highway 200' on both sides; all property on both
sides of Route 138 from the Wyoming Bridge to a point .l mile east of the
Route 138 - Route 3 intersection, and back from the highway on both sides
for a distance of 200', the Wood River from the Wyoming Dam to the Wyoming
Bridge and back from its banks 50' on both sides, the Wyoming Reservoir eadt
from the dam to a point opposite the intersection of Route 3 and Canob Lane,
and back from the banks of the reservoir to a distance of 50'.

5.
Richmond Town House ‘
Richmond Town House Road c
Richmond, Rhode Island Code: 44

7. Description cont.

Southeast of this node of business buildings, rows of simple Greek
Revival cottages flank both sides of Route 138. The best preserved Greek
Revival house on the Richmond side, the D. Kenyon House (#40), stands on
routes 138 and 3 at the western end of the district. This 1% story cottage
is enhanced by a "carpenter gothic" trellis, interesting outbuildings, and
a picket fence whibh differentiates between the public space of the road
and the private yard surrounding the house.

Buildings in the Wyoming Village Historic District are generally in
good condition and fairly well preserved.

i Ihventqu

Numbers are taken from the site plan

names of buildings are taken froﬂ:iBSS,
the 1870 and the 1895 maps.

~ Style/Period Code: 18C = Eighteenth Century

ER = Early Republican/Federal
GR = Greek Revival

MV = Mid-Victorian

LV = Late Victorian

E20 = Early Twentieth Century
M20 = Mid-Twentieth Century

See continuation sheet 2
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10.
1l1.
12.
13.

14.

15.

16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.

23.
24,

25.

26.

Olney House; appears, 1855

ER 1 story house with central chimney.

GR altered 1 story house with high stone basement
property of mill owners in 1870, 1895.

M20 house trailer.

M20 1 story house.

GR 1% story house with LV porch; appears, 1885
property of mill owners in 1870, 1895,

Fenner House; appears 1855

GR 1% story house.

Sheldon Housej; appears, 1855

GR 1) story house.

Matteson House; appears, 1870

late GR 1% story house.

Smith House; appears, 1895

LV 2 story house..

M20 1 story house.

LV Barn; appears, 1895, ~
Niles House; appears, 1855,

GR 1% story house.

Almond House; appears, 1835

GR 1 story house. :
GR 1% dtory house with LV porch; appears, 1870

property of mill owners in 1870.

Dr. Aldrich House; appears 1855

GR 1% story house with fine porch across front;
identified as home of Dr. Aldrich in 1870.

Gardner House; appears, 1870

GR 1% story house.

GR 1-1% story house; appears, 1855

excellent porch on ell.

Tillinghast House; appears, 1870

GR 1% story house.

G. & I, Kenyon House; appears, 1855

GR 2 story double house with 1 story wings.

A. Kenyon House; appears, 1870

GR 1% story house with rusticated corner pllasters.
Barber House; appears, 1870

GR 2 story house.

ER/GR 1 story house; appears, 1855

property of mill owners in 1870.

M20 house trailer. ‘
MV 2 story bracketed house with 1 story ell; appears, 1870
property of mill owners in 1870.

‘MV 1% story house; appears, 1870

property of mill owners in 1870.
GR 1% story house; appears, 1870
property of mill owners in 1870.

See continuation sheet 3
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27. E20 garage.
28. Ruins of textile mill complex; 18C, GR, LV;
site of Brand's Iron Works.
29. Wyoming Dam & Reservoir
: first dam here built in the 18th century
present reservoir, dam, and picturesque mill ruins}
on southeast side of dam part of Wyoming Fishing Area,
site of 1814 Brothers Mill and later mills.
130. MV 1 story store; appears, 1870
in 1870, Potter & James Store.
3l. Three LV-E20 1 story brick and frame
' industrial buildings;
in 1895 site of Batting Mill.
}32. Dawley Tavern; appears, 1855
13-2 story frame building
once one of Rhode Island's most famous highway taverns;
- northeast end of present building may date from the 18C;
rest is ER; ballroom with coved ceiling,
second floor, southeast end;
in mid-nineteenth century operated by A. J. Dawley.
33. MV 1% story, two family house; appears, 1870;
L in 1870, property of A. J. Dawley.
134. MV Richmond Historic Cemetery #22; fair condition.
T35. MV Richmond Historic Cemetery #21; poor condition.
36, E20 1 story house.
37. E20 1% story house.
38. E20 1 story garage.
'39. J. L. Kenyon House; appears, 1895
LV 2 story house.
40. D. Kenyon House; appears, 1855
fine GR 1% story house; interesting out buildings
_ good trellis and picket fence.
4l. Excellent MV (?) drywall.
42. M20 1 story house.
'43. Palmer-Segar House; appears, 1855.
GR 2 story house; pedimented gable to
\ street has triangular window; 1% story ell.
44, LV 1% story building, now a credit union.
45, LV 2} story building
. store in basement level, living quarters above.
46. W. F. Segar Store; 1850
' GR 2% story house built into bank
creating a full basement story which was store;
fine GR detail; LV 2 story porch across front.
47. Pierce-Cook House; appears, 1870
[ MV 2 story bracketed building.
48. Dawley-Jordan Livery Stable
1}=2 story wood frame structure
fow a gag statlon; See continuation sheet 4
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WYOMING VILLAGE HISTORIC DISTRICT
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